
 
REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON,  TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on WEDNESDAY, January 24, 2024, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New 

Boston, TX 75570. 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on 

any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held 

and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that authorizes 

the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. Subject to the provisions set forth under Section 551.007 of the 

Government Code. 

 

IV. SPECIAL AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of RESO 20240124-01 

accepting the recommendations of the City of Texarkana, Texas and the City of 

New Boston that Steve Mayo and Lynn Davis, respectively, to serve terms as 

members of the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water Resources District. 



 

 

 

 

B. Oaths of office, administered by Judge Bobby Howell, for Directors Steve Mayo 

and Lynn Davis.  

 

V. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of the November 15, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes and the December 4, 2023 Special Called Meeting 

minutes. 

 

VI. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VII. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution appointing 

Lynn Davis as the Vice President of the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water 

Resources District. 

 

This item is to consider appointing new Board Member, Lynn Davis, to the position 

of Vice President.  Staff recommends approval. 

 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240124-02 appointing 

Lynn Davis as the Vice President of the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water 

Resources District.  

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 

an update of authorized signatures for all bank accounts. 

 

This item pertains to authorizing board members to have signature authority on all 

bank accounts.  With the appointment of Lynn Davis to the Board, the authorized 

account signatures must be updated.  

 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240124-03 authorizing an 

update of authorized signatures for all bank accounts.  



 

 

 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 

the Executive Director/CEO to submit a withdrawal of the Request for 

Exclusion from the 3M settlement agreement for a lawsuit pertaining to 

polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in drinking water. 

 

At the November 15th Regular meeting and the December 4th Special Called 

meeting, the 3M and DuPont PFAS class action settlement agreements were 

discussed.  At the December 4th meeting, the Board decided to submit a Request 

for Exclusion from the 3M settlement agreement to see if any new information or 

answers to some of the questions around the settlement agreements were answered 

in the time between that December meeting and the Final Fairness Hearing for the 

3M settlement is held in early February.  The Final Fairness Hearing is also the 

deadline for anyone who wants to withdraw their Request for Exclusion submittals.  

It was the staff’s understanding, based on the last Board discussion, that if no new 

information was available, the board would like the opportunity to have an agenda 

item to consider withdrawing the Request for Exclusion on the 3M settlement.  

Upon the review of the information since our last meeting in December, it is the 

staff’s determination, along with review from our legal counsel, that nothing has 

been presented that would change the prior Board discussion in this regard.  Staff’s 

recommendation is to approve this action to authorize the Executive Director to 

submit a withdrawal of the Request for Exclusion from the 3M settlement prior to 

the Final Fairness Hearing.  

 

Action Item: Consider a motion for approval of RESO 20240124-04 authorizing 

the Executive Director/CEO to submit a withdrawal of the Request for Exclusion 

from the 3M settlement agreement for a lawsuit pertaining to polyfluoroalkyl 

substances (PFAS) in drinking water. 

  

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

amendments to the second and third quarter Investment Reports for FY 2023. 

 

The presentation of amendments to the second and third quarter investment reports 

for FY 2023 will be by Tara Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240124-05 approving 

amendments to the second and third quarter investment reports for FY 2023. 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the fourth quarter financials for FY 2023. 

 

The presentation of the fourth quarter financials for FY 2023 will be by Tara Houck.   



 

 

 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240124-06 approving the 

fourth quarter financials for FY 2023. 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the fourth quarter investment report for FY 2023. 

 

The presentation of the fourth quarter investment report for FY 2023 will be by 

Tara Houck.   

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240124-07 approving the 

fourth quarter investment report for FY 2023. 

G. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

the FY 2023 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. 

 

The presentation of the FY 2023 Annual Audit will be by Carolyn Wilder with Wilf 

and Henderson, P.C. 

Action Item: Consider motion for approval of RESO 20240124-08 approving the 

FY 2023 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. 

VIII. REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in 

closed or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving 

legal advice from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters 

(Section 551.072); discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing 

personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 

551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board 

of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item on this 

agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and 

will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

X. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, February 28, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 



 

 

 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 
*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who may need 

auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices at (903) 831-0091, as soon 

as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the appropriate arrangements. 



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

SPECIAL AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-01 

Board of Director Appointments  
& Oaths of Office 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-01 

 
APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the terms of Steve Mayo and Fred Milton expired on December 31, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Member Entities consisting of the City of Texarkana, Texas and the City 

of New Boston, Texas appointed Mr. Mayo and Mr. Lynn Davis, respectively, to serve terms on the 
Board of Directors of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 
Water Resources District hereby accepts the recommendations of the City of Texarkana, Texas, and 
the City of New Boston, Texas.  
 

PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
  
       __________________________________  
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM V. A. 
November 15, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes & 
December 4, 2023 

Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

November 15, 2023 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Fred Milton, Vice President of the 

Board, called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Fred Milton, Vice President 

Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary  

Sonja Hubbard, Treasurer 

Van Alexander, Past President  

 

Directors Absent:  

Steve Mayo, President 
 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Tara Houck, CFO 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Fred Milton led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

 None. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda Items 

 

Item IV. A. was considered under a Consent Agenda for one single motion of approval. 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding October 25, 2023 Regular Called Meeting 

Minutes. 

 



 

  

A single motion was made by Van Alexander and seconded by Sonja Hubbard to approve 

the Consent Agenda Item as listed above. The motion passed unanimously. 

V. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority 

(SRBA). 

 

No report.  No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC). 

 

No report. No action taken.  

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

No report. No action taken. 

 

VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion regarding the Fourth Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report. 

 

Presentation of the fourth quarter investment report for FY 2023 was made by Tara Houck. 

 

No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion regarding the draft Fourth Quarter FY 2023 Financials. 

Presentation of the draft fourth quarter financials of FY 2023 was made by Tara Houck.  These 

draft numbers will be finalized and included in the audit so no action will be required at this 

time.  The audit will be brought before the board for review and approval at the January board 

meeting.  

No action taken. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding a class action lawsuit pertaining to 

polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in drinking water. 

Kyle Dooley and David Glass, general counsel, provide the information on the class action 

lawsuit against 3M and DuPont for PFAS contamination in drinking water. The settlement 

agreement for 3M stands at $10.5-$12.5B and the settlement agreement with DuPont stands at 

$1.185B.  Riverbend falls within one of the two classes affected by these settlements. The 

discussion centered around any possible action the Board would like to consider as there are 

opt-out dates approaching.  The opt-out date for DuPont is December 4th and for 3M it is 

December 11th.  The board opted to take no action which includes Riverbend as a claimant in 

the lawsuit against 3M and Dupont.  

 



 

  

VII.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports.  

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

 

Regional Water System Project: Matt Garcia provided that the agency comments for the 

Environmental Document have been submitted completely to the Texas Water Development 

Board. They are reviewing this document for compliance. the draft Memorandum of 

Agreement has been submitted to the USACE (Corps) to initiate the “out-grant process.” The 

out-grant is what the Corps calls an easement on their property. The memorandum of 

agreement provides a means to reimburse the Corps for reviewing our out-grant request. Pape 

has requested a determination from the regulatory arm of the Corps regarding the permitting 

of the intake structure and pipelines. The Corps regulatory arm has indicated that if the intake 

structure is above the ordinary highwater elevation (and it is planned to be above that 

elevation), a special permit will not be required. Similarly, because the pipeline is part of a 

water transmission utility, it can be covered under a Nationwide Permit, which means there is 

not a special application nor delay in design and construction. The kick-off meeting with the 

successful design consultants was held in October. They are exchanging data with them to get 

started on design. The draft contract documents for the successful Design Consultant have 

been completed and Pape will assist Riverbend in negotiating these contracts. Value 

engineering workshops are expected to occur in January 2024. Kyle Dooley added that we 

have been successful in working with the City of Annona and Oak Grove Water Supply 

Corporation on principal forgiveness. Two other entities that meet the qualifications for 

principal forgiveness are the City of Avery and the City of Leary. Mr. Dooley is in the process 

of submitting applications for them as well.  An application for grant funds through the Texas 

Environmental Infrastructure Program that is funded through the Corps has been submitted. 

The bill that passed to funds those projects has just over $9 million available for projects like 

our regional water facility. Letters of congressional support from Pat Fallon’s and Nathaniel 

Moran’s offices have been submitted with the application. Any funds awarded to Riverbend 

would be at a 75/25 split where 75% of the funds would be paid by the federal government 

and Riverbend would cover the remaining 25%. The next step is, in the spring, Mr. Dooley 

will discuss adding more funds to those available grant dollars for the 2025, 2026 and even 

further future budgets with those congressional offices in Washington, D.C..  

 

Industrial Waste Water Plant: Mr. Dooley and Eli Hunt, Director of Operations met with the 

RRAD Public Works Department to discuss the amendments necessary to our annual contract 

to guarantee the Army will pay the debt associated with the bonds taken out to pay for the 

construction of the new industrial plant. A meeting is scheduled for December 13th with the 

command staff to discuss next steps and a timeline for the project.  

Ultimate Rule Curve: No changes on the Environmental and Cultural Resources Studies from 

the last update. We are still waiting for the final contract and then they will come back to us to 

ask for any changes in funding there may be. We held our first policy meeting with the Corps 

to discuss unanswered policy questions. Storage costs, the “donut hole” on the 32,000 acre 



 

  

feet, will any mitigation cost be the responsibility of the Corps for flood control and not just 

the responsibility of Riverbend for the water supply. The goal is to create a draft outline of 

what we think the agreement should look like when we get to that point. The outline will 

answer, not just the volume of water, but which entity will cover the required costs. The Corps 

has listed that priority number one is what an appropriate cost-share looks like if mitigation is 

required and to determine whether mitigation is required, impact questions have to be 

answered. The questions are: are there impacts; are there impacts that will require mitigation; 

if there are, then there should be an equitable cost-share between the Corps and Riverbend.  

This indicates that they recognize that the reservoir fluctuates naturally as a flood control lake. 

Those fluctuations are not solely attributable to water supply. Fluctuations happen because of 

flood control also. That discussion needs to be covered before decisions are made on mitigation 

costs.  Our meetings regarding the Environmental Impact Study and the Cultural Resources 

Study are centered around cost of the studies. The studies will take around 18 months. Then 

the reports will be submitted. Then we talk about mitigation. We are hoping by starting the 

conversation on our policy questions it leads to a quick decision on impact and cost-sharing.  

No action taken.  

 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 12:57 p.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 1:03 p.m. with quorum pursuant to section 

551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:50 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:51 p.m.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 24, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and seconded 

by Sonja Hubbard to adjourn the meeting at 1:55 p.m. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

November 15, 2023, were read and approved on the 24th day of January 2024. 

 

Attest: 

 

_______________________________________   ________________________________________  

Steve Mayo, President                Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

 

 
 



 

  

 

Special Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

December 4, 2023 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of  Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Fred Milton, Vice President of the 

Board, called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Fred Milton, Vice President 

Sonja Hubbard, Treasurer 

Van Alexander, Past President  

 

Directors Absent:  

Steve Mayo, President 

Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary  

 

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Fred Milton led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

 None. 

 

IV. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to submit a Request for Exclusion from a settlement agreement 

for a lawsuit pertaining to polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in drinking water. 

 



 

  

Kyle Dooley provided that this item pertains to the PFAS class action lawsuit settlement 

agreements for 3M and DuPont. The settlement agreement for 3M stands at $10.5-$12.5B and 

the settlement agreement with DuPont stands at $1.185B.  RWRD falls within the class 

affected by these settlements. The opt-out date for 3M it is December 11th.  No action was 

taken at the November board meeting, leaving RWRD in the DuPont lawsuit. New information 

on the terms of the 3M settlement require further discussion and possible action by the Board. 

A Request for Exclusion from the 3M suit must be properly served by the deadline imposed 

by the Court. That deadline is December 11, 2023. In seeking Preliminary Approval of this 

Settlement Agreement, the Class Representatives will ask the Court to set that deadline ninety 

(90) calendar days after the date the Notice is mailed. Any Eligible Claimant that has elected 

to opt out may withdraw its Request for Exclusion at any time prior to the Final Fairness 

Hearing (scheduled for February 2, 2024), and thereby accept all terms of this Settlement 

Agreement, including its Dismissal provisions. 

 

A motion was made by Van Alexander and seconded by Sonja Hubbard approving RESO 

20231204-01 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to submit a Request for Exclusion from 

a settlement agreement for a lawsuit pertaining to polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in 

drinking water. 

 

V.   Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports.  

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VI.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 10:12 a.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 10:15 a.m. with quorum pursuant to section 

551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 10:25 a.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 10:27 a.m.  

 

VII. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, January 24, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 

228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

VIII.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and 

seconded by Sonja Hubbard to adjourn the meeting at 10:28 a.m. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 



 

  

 

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on 

December 4, 2023, were read and approved on the 24th day of January 2024. 

     

 

_______________________________________     

Steve Mayo, President     

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. A. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-02 

Appointment of Vice President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-02 

 
ELECTING A NEW VICE PRESIDENT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is required by law to elect officers to its 

Board of Directors; and 
 
WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District last elected officers of the Board of 

Director on September 27, 2023 and affirmed that election through RESO 20230927-03; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lynn Davis was appointed to the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water 

Resources District by the City of New Boston, Texas on December 19, 2023 to replace Fred Milton; 
and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District hereby elects and affirms Lynn Davis as Vice President to join the 2024 
Elected Officers, as follows: 

 
Steve Mayo -President, Lynn Davis -Vice President, Sonja Hubbard -Treasurer, Tina Veal Gooch -
Secretary, Van Alexander -Past President 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
  
       __________________________________  
       Steve Mayo, Vice President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. B. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-03 
Authorized Bank Signatures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-03 
 

AUTHORIZING THE ADDITION  OF CERTAIN AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES TO 
THE APPROPRIATE BANK DEPOSITORIES 

 
WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; 
 
WHEREAS, the establishment of certain levels of approval benefit the district in 

managing its resources and maintaining flexibility for the daily operation of the wet utilities 
ensures that the appropriate level of oversight in finances is maintained; and 

 
WHEREAS, the establishment and addition of certain authorized signatures by 

representatives of the district at appropriate bank depositories is an appropriate management tool; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District, effective January 24, 2024, approves this resolution authorizing the 
following: 

 
1) a requirement of one authorized signature for amounts under $25,000.00 and a requirement of 

two authorized signatures for anything equal to and over $25,000.00 for the approval and 

decision-making of bank depository services; 
 

2) a designation of authorized signatories as follows: 
 

Jerry Lynn Davis, Jr. 
Steven Mayo 
Sonja Hubbard 
Tina Veal-Gooch 
Van Alexander;  
Benjamin Kyle Dooley; and 



 
3) the authorized number of signatures and authorized signatories shall be applicable to the 

following bank depositories: 
State Bank of Dekalb; 
Texana Bank; 
Bank of Oklahoma; 
Texar Federal Credit Union; and 
Regions Bank 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Steve Mayo, President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 

 



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. C. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-04 

PFAS Lawsuit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-04 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO WITHDRAW A 
PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED REQUEST FOR EXCLUSION FROM THE 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE LAWSUIT AGAINST 3M FOR 

MAUFACTURING, MARKETING, DISTRIBUTING AND SELLING PRODUCTS 
CONTAINING DANGEROUS PFAS SUBSTANCES  

 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, In July 2023 a settlement agreement was finalized in a lawsuit against 
chemical companies, including The 3M Company (3M), for manufacturing, marketing, 
distributing, and selling products containing dangerous per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances 
(PFAS) which now pollute natural resources; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 4, 2023, the Board of Directors authorized the Executive 
Director/CEO to submit a Request for Exclusion from the lawsuit agains the 3M Company via 
RESO 20231204-01; and 
 

WHEREAS, given the lack of new information acquired since that meeting, there is a need 
to withdraw that Request for Exclusion from the lawsuit against 3M giving Riverbend the 
opportunity to be a part of the lawsuit.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the 
Executive Director/CEO to withdraw the previously submitted Request for Exclusion from the 
lawsuit against 3M.  
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
  



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. D. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-05 
FY 2023 Amendments to the  

Second and Third Quarter  
Investment Reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-05 
 

APPROVING THE AMENDED SECOND AND THIRD QUARTER FY 2023 
INVESTMENT REPORTS   

 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 
required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 
Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 
accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 
  
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a need to amend the previously 
approved investment reports for the second and third quarters of 2023. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 
accepts and approves the Second and Third Quarter FY 2023 Investment Reports. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Attached: Second Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report 
      Third Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report 



\oo\@
hN

-N
\o\od3

--o\o\o

F
tr-otron..r..r6-oii

o.\oo66F
.{5h\ott@

€\o\o

.\o\-6r\o
o 

66\O
-6c.I 

€-6h
\o--l.a.aor\o

€r=
:=

=
=

=
=

!ft!Q
a99€h.no\oad,

xxE
;;;;;3ssss

a!r??

Eo,oI

E
_9 s

_a>
 t

d>
d

E
 

=
"E

-A
 E

 a 3 a A
E

F
-- **{4{{84

E
 >

d 
E

 
c(..6 

6 6 E
 6 

E

€E
E

E
:r*:E

E
:E

E
E

E
:E

E
i'E

E
E

E
E

Z
-E

E
: E

3€e&
!=

333€3E
6 E

 <
 l! <

 a! <
 ao <

 co <
 ao <

 
ao

;.=
ooooooooN

dN
N

9,,..
6!!E

!

E
5bbbbb55!.b.E

!-E
-6.z d, I 

/, 
d 

d 
d 

d 
d 

d 
d, /, 

d

- 
!€;E

. 
F

E
E

q
d -ii 

5 
5-

dadd,d,d,

A

: br 
b

E
O

tO

9F

oooo>

E

E
-c

F
Q

=
'i 

n
7 

L'c

:^9X
<

r-

e2E
E

 Y
A

i:fE
;=

: E
A

'E
o

alzl.
>

a
q .^ 'e
z4z

tt 2 i
)tE

'rz 
Z

FUFoU
)

t-]
ODalrll.lFzE

,I

It-,1

-6iT
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

::
ob-rz!rirr 

r, o 
o 

o 
L 

L
,E

E
F

F
iF

E
IiIr!:;A

42222 
Z

Z
 

! 
E

 ! 
! 

ii ii
>

. >
, >

.;;; 
; 

i 
r

>
31 

!l 
!2 !l 

12 1f ba66', 
',

6>
>

>
>

>
>

ddddrj

2)5II



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SCHEDIILE OF INVESTIIIEN'TS
ENTERPRISE }'tiNDS
For the Threc lllonlhs Ind€d June 30,202]

Iunds
ldcntificrtion

Numbcr
Mxturirv

Drle
Relence

03t3 2023 06/.]0/202J

.l 
rrnsfers

ln/(()ut)
Pcr Policv

llelanc€
06t30/2023

Accrued
Int Rec

06t30n023
Dcposils/

$ ilhdrarrils
Administrative Fund

Operations

Restricted - Region D Plaining
Operations

Wer Utiliries Fund

Operations

Reslricted bond sinking
Restricted bond reserves

Restricted construction funds

Restricted opcrations

Regional warer System Facilities Fund
Restricted - Minimum Monthly Pa},Inenls

Restricted - 2020A Consruction
Reslrictcd - 20208 Construction

Restricted - 2020A Revenue
Restricted - 20208 Revenne

Resticred - 2020A lnteresl & Redemption
Restricred - 20208 Inlerest & Redemption
Resu_icied - 2020A Construction Esoow
Restricted - 20208 Construction Escrow
Restricted - 20224 Conslruction Escrow
Reslricted - 20228 Construclion Escrow

Restricted - 2022A Consruction Escrow

Restricted - 20228 Construction Escrow

94,004 $
13.160

1,586

t24,934 $

l3, t 7l
3,587

50001704

8009740

457060

Daily chccking
Money Market
Daily savings

s

587.1t0
674

I.123
351.962

1,098,056

3,124.600
I,749,202
I,221,0t7
2,418.729
E,083,2E1

6,537,275

44.881,123
29,92t,415

12

2.254
15,063

3.791

50

5.624

7

5

4
680

|,201
2,735
1.440

t2,l l4
28,707

t04,130
83,t 89

280.820

t97.752

$ r 15.000

(825,755)

7 t7,229
(2,592)

(17)
(1,845)

(109,424)

389,447

61,647
425,654

283,170

(244.8s9)
(5.963)

(144,58t)
(55,684)

2.2t3,039
( 132.600)

473,4t8
(388,201)
(61,710)

208,074

138.715
(664,159)
(r l1.429)

531

(2,610\
2,468,752
1,562,9t6

(2,587,056)
(t,734.245)

35 r,l8 r

1,92s
I,044

986,370
1,521,748

3,063,176
1,639,2 r3

989,003

2,458,803

10,5 t I,775
8,127,696

42,576.887

2E,3E4.922

3_9't4

9,734
38,132

29.978
223.934
139,784

21695
21709
?t217
2t74t
2t733

266,677

1,989,090

609.226
20,035

903.830

t,726,215
2,588,782

610,425

20,048
905,609

30t 1380

2031890
50022709

8009732

8009716

80098 t1
8009724

8244t6-01-0
82-4405-0t-3
E2-542E-0t 4
82-5429 -0 | -2

82-5428-014
82-5429 -0 t -2

Total - All Funds $ t0t.619.62:i $ 719.91t5 S _

The inveshlent schedule ofRiverbcnd Waler Resources District is in compliance Nith the Public Funds Invcstment Acl and the Dislricfs lnvestment Policy

U-r.]./

$ 106.606,514 $ 445,536

Tara Houck. CPA
Chief Financial Ofticer

(84,070) $
ll

I

Daily checking
Daily checking
Daily checking
Daily checkinS

Money Markel

Daily Savings

Money Market
Money Market
Money Market
Money Market
Money Market
Money Madct
Bot Short-Term Cash Fund

Bot Sho(-Term Cash Fund

Bot Sho(-Term Cash Fund

Bot Short-Term Cash Fund

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. E. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-06 

FY 2023 Fourth  
Quarter Financials  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-06 
 

APPROVING THE FOURTH QUARTER FY 2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   
 
 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff prepares and presents quarterly 
financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend Water Resources 
funds. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 
Board of Directors accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2023 financials. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Attached: Fourth Quarter FY 2023 Financials 



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Current assets: 
     Cash and cash equivalents 175,980$            -$                      1,495,240$        1,671,220$      
     Accounts receivable 16,747 293,207 674,238 984,192
     Interest receivable - 719,072 - 719,072
     Interfund accounts 25,592 - - 25,592
     Restricted assets:

          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,695,274 668,853 5,364,127
          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for construction - 39,496,276 20,055 39,516,331
          Investments restricted for construction - 68,392,824 68,392,824
          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for operations - - 905,911 905,911
     Prepaid expenses - - 160,310 160,310
     Inventories - - 82,645 82,645
          Total current assets 218,319 113,596,653 4,007,252 117,822,224

Noncurrent assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents  - restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,066,775 3,075,597 7,142,372
Right to Use Subscription asset (net of accumulated amortization) - - 64,441 64,441
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
     Equipment - - 484,999 484,999
     Utility system - - 15,446,742 15,446,742
     Intangible assets - - 244,627 244,627
     Construction in progress - 16,946,709 27,335 16,974,044
     Total capital assets - 16,946,709 16,203,703 33,150,412
          Total noncurrent assets - 21,013,484 19,343,741 40,357,225

TOTAL ASSETS 218,319 134,610,137 23,350,993 158,179,449

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
     Accounts payable 16,448 205,480 59,518 281,446
     Payroll liabilities - - 6,403 6,403
     Interfund accounts - 18,701 6,891 25,592
     Due to North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 82,818 - - 82,818
     Accrued interest payable - 767,100 122,888 889,988

     Accrued compensated absences - current portion - - 22,667 22,667

     Subscription liability - current portion - - 21,465 21,465

     Revenue bonds payable - current portion - 3,150,000 410,000 3,560,000

          Total current liabilities 99,266 4,141,281 649,832 4,890,379

Long-term liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 62,622 62,622

     Subscription liability - long term - - 22,487 22,487

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 119,295,000 6,595,000 125,890,000

          Total long-term liabilities - 119,295,000 6,680,109 125,975,109

TOTAL LIABILITES 99,266 123,436,281 7,329,941 130,865,488

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - 2,185,404 10,150,310 12,335,714

     Restricted for bond reserves - 9,005,593 3,750,376 12,755,969

     Restricted for construction - 1,560 20,055 21,615

     Unrestricted 119,053 (18,701) 2,100,311 2,200,663

TOTAL NET POSITION 119,053$             11,173,856$           16,021,052$       27,313,961$     

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Current assets: 
     Cash and cash equivalents 175,980$            -$                      1,495,240$        1,671,220$      
     Accounts receivable 16,747 293,207 674,238 984,192
     Interest receivable - 719,072 - 719,072
     Interfund accounts 25,592 - - 25,592
     Restricted assets:

          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,695,274 668,853 5,364,127
          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for construction - 39,496,276 20,055 39,516,331
          Investments restricted for construction - 68,392,824 68,392,824
          Cash and cash equivalents restricted for operations - - 905,911 905,911
     Prepaid expenses - - 160,310 160,310
     Inventories - - 82,645 82,645
          Total current assets 218,319 113,596,653 4,007,252 117,822,224

Noncurrent assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents  - restricted for bond debt reserves - 4,066,775 3,075,597 7,142,372
Right to Use Subscription asset (net of accumulated amortization) - - 64,441 64,441
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
     Equipment - - 484,999 484,999
     Utility system - - 15,446,742 15,446,742
     Intangible assets - - 244,627 244,627
     Construction in progress - 16,946,709 27,335 16,974,044
     Total capital assets - 16,946,709 16,203,703 33,150,412
          Total noncurrent assets - 21,013,484 19,343,741 40,357,225

TOTAL ASSETS 218,319 134,610,137 23,350,993 158,179,449

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
     Accounts payable 16,448 205,480 59,518 281,446
     Payroll liabilities - - 6,403 6,403
     Interfund accounts - 18,701 6,891 25,592
     Due to North East Texas Regional Water Planning Group 82,818 - - 82,818
     Accrued interest payable - 767,100 122,888 889,988

     Accrued compensated absences - current portion - - 22,667 22,667

     Subscription liability - current portion - - 21,465 21,465

     Revenue bonds payable - current portion - 3,150,000 410,000 3,560,000

          Total current liabilities 99,266 4,141,281 649,832 4,890,379

Long-term liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - - 62,622 62,622

     Subscription liability - long term - - 22,487 22,487

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 119,295,000 6,595,000 125,890,000

          Total long-term liabilities - 119,295,000 6,680,109 125,975,109

TOTAL LIABILITES 99,266 123,436,281 7,329,941 130,865,488

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets - 2,185,404 10,150,310 12,335,714

     Restricted for bond reserves - 9,005,593 3,750,376 12,755,969

     Restricted for construction - 1,560 20,055 21,615

     Unrestricted 119,053 (18,701) 2,100,311 2,200,663

TOTAL NET POSITION 119,053$             11,173,856$           16,021,052$       27,313,961$     



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Member fees 191,754$                -$                          -$                            191,754$              
          Army volumetric charge - - 3,281,493 3,281,493
          Army water supply charge - - 239,839 239,839
          Commercial and residential charge - - 195,483 195,483
           Infrastructure Services - - 116,516 116,516
      Other revenue - - 11,487 11,487
          Total operating revenues 191,754 - 3,844,818 4,036,572

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Accounting and audit 4,960 - - 4,960
     Analyticals - - 104,911 104,911
     Community relations 2,605 - - 2,605
     Conferences & seminars 4,071 - - 4,071
     Consulting 182,111 - 8,358 190,469
     Dues and memberships 9,041 - - 9,041
     Engineering services 11,100 - - 11,100
     Equipment maintenance, repair and fuel - - 44,571 44,571

     Insurance - - 60,279 60,279

     Legal and professional fees 7,529 - - 7,529

     Materials - - 194,317 194,317

     Meetings expense 5,385 - - 5,385

     Permits - - 32,118 32,118

     Repairs - - 253,287 253,287

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and benefits 171,335 - 916,871 1,088,206

     Supplies - - 57,124 57,124

     Travel and training 9,634 - - 9,634

     Utilities - - 183,555 183,555

     Waste disposal - - 43,749 43,749

     Water purchase cost - - 245,030 245,030

     Web design and maintenance 2,981 - - 2,981

     Infrastructure services - - 128,197 128,197

     Overhead allocation - water - - 172,671 172,671

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 187,674 187,674

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 189,214 189,214

          Total operating expenses before depreciation 410,752 - 2,821,926 3,232,678

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (218,998) - 1,022,892 803,894

     Depreciation - - 862,430 862,430

     Amortization - - 23,557 23,557

Operating income (loss) (218,998) - 136,905 (82,093)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 1,459,034 1,459,034

     Minimum monthly payments - 4,483,159 - 4,483,159

     Interest revenue - 2,750,657 77,705 2,828,362

     Project admin fees - - 18,974 18,974

     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment - 738,518 - 738,518

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets - - 23,105 23,105

     Bond issuance costs - (451,895) - (451,895)

     Interest expense - (1,608,065) (270,851) (1,878,916)

     Finance and wire fees - (2,578) - (2,578)

     Franchise fees expense - - (111,638) (111,638)

     Special projects expense (13,366) - - (13,366)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (13,366) 5,909,796 1,196,329 7,092,759

Income (loss) before transfers (232,364) 5,909,796 1,333,234 7,010,666

Transfers in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

Changes in net position (2,364) 5,909,796 1,103,234 7,010,666
Net position, beginning of year 121,417 5,264,060 14,917,818 20,303,295

Net position, end of 4th quarter 119,053$                 11,173,856$              16,021,052$            27,313,961$          

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Regional Water System Regional Water System Wet Utilities

Administration Fund Facilities Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Member fees 191,754$                -$                          -$                            191,754$              
          Army volumetric charge - - 3,281,493 3,281,493
          Army water supply charge - - 239,839 239,839
          Commercial and residential charge - - 195,483 195,483
           Infrastructure Services - - 116,516 116,516
      Other revenue - - 11,487 11,487
          Total operating revenues 191,754 - 3,844,818 4,036,572

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Accounting and audit 4,960 - - 4,960
     Analyticals - - 104,911 104,911
     Community relations 2,605 - - 2,605
     Conferences & seminars 4,071 - - 4,071
     Consulting 182,111 - 8,358 190,469
     Dues and memberships 9,041 - - 9,041
     Engineering services 11,100 - - 11,100
     Equipment maintenance, repair and fuel - - 44,571 44,571

     Insurance - - 60,279 60,279

     Legal and professional fees 7,529 - - 7,529

     Materials - - 194,317 194,317

     Meetings expense 5,385 - - 5,385

     Permits - - 32,118 32,118

     Repairs - - 253,287 253,287

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and benefits 171,335 - 916,871 1,088,206

     Supplies - - 57,124 57,124

     Travel and training 9,634 - - 9,634

     Utilities - - 183,555 183,555

     Waste disposal - - 43,749 43,749

     Water purchase cost - - 245,030 245,030

     Web design and maintenance 2,981 - - 2,981

     Infrastructure services - - 128,197 128,197

     Overhead allocation - water - - 172,671 172,671

     Overhead allocation - wastewater - - 187,674 187,674

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater - - 189,214 189,214

          Total operating expenses before depreciation 410,752 - 2,821,926 3,232,678

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (218,998) - 1,022,892 803,894

     Depreciation - - 862,430 862,430

     Amortization - - 23,557 23,557

Operating income (loss) (218,998) - 136,905 (82,093)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - - 1,459,034 1,459,034

     Minimum monthly payments - 4,483,159 - 4,483,159

     Interest revenue - 2,750,657 77,705 2,828,362

     Project admin fees - - 18,974 18,974

     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment - 738,518 - 738,518

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets - - 23,105 23,105

     Bond issuance costs - (451,895) - (451,895)

     Interest expense - (1,608,065) (270,851) (1,878,916)

     Finance and wire fees - (2,578) - (2,578)

     Franchise fees expense - - (111,638) (111,638)

     Special projects expense (13,366) - - (13,366)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (13,366) 5,909,796 1,196,329 7,092,759

Income (loss) before transfers (232,364) 5,909,796 1,333,234 7,010,666

Transfers in (out) 230,000 - (230,000) -

Changes in net position (2,364) 5,909,796 1,103,234 7,010,666
Net position, beginning of year 121,417 5,264,060 14,917,818 20,303,295

Net position, end of 4th quarter 119,053$                 11,173,856$              16,021,052$            27,313,961$          



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance with % of
Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services 192,158$      191,754$      (404)$            99.79%
     Total operating revenues 192,158 191,754 (404) 99.79%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Advertising 1,200 - 1,200 0.00%
     Accounting & audit 5,000 4,960 40 99.20%
     Community relations 8,000 2,605 5,395 32.56%
     Conferences & seminars 4,700 4,071 629 86.62%
     Consulting 200,000 182,111 17,889 91.06%
     Dues & memberships 9,083 9,041 42 99.54%
     Engineering services 20,000 11,100 8,900 55.50%
     Legal & professional fees 25,600 7,529 18,071 29.41%
     Meetings expense 6,000 5,385 615 89.75%
     Military affairs 11,000 - 11,000 0.00%

     Office supplies & expense 4,100 - 4,100 0.00%

     Regional planning projects 60,000 - 60,000 0.00%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 177,763 171,335 6,428 96.38%

     Travel & training 18,000 9,634 8,366 53.52%

     Web design & maintenance 4,000 2,981 1,019 74.53%

          Total operating expenses 554,446 410,752 143,694 74.08%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interest revenue 100 - (100) 0.00%

     Special projects expense (50,000) (13,366) 36,634 26.73%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (49,900) (13,366) 36,534 -26.79%

Income (loss) before transfers (412,188) (232,364) (179,824) 56.37%

Transfer in 230,000 230,000 - 100.00%

Additional transfer in if necessary 60,771 - 60,771 0.00%

Change in net position (121,417) (2,364) (119,053) 156.37%

Net position, beginning of year 121,417 121,417 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 4th quarter -$               119,053$       (119,053)$      

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance with % of
Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services 192,158$      191,754$      (404)$            99.79%
     Total operating revenues 192,158 191,754 (404) 99.79%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Advertising 1,200 - 1,200 0.00%
     Accounting & audit 5,000 4,960 40 99.20%
     Community relations 8,000 2,605 5,395 32.56%
     Conferences & seminars 4,700 4,071 629 86.62%
     Consulting 200,000 182,111 17,889 91.06%
     Dues & memberships 9,083 9,041 42 99.54%
     Engineering services 20,000 11,100 8,900 55.50%
     Legal & professional fees 25,600 7,529 18,071 29.41%
     Meetings expense 6,000 5,385 615 89.75%
     Military affairs 11,000 - 11,000 0.00%

     Office supplies & expense 4,100 - 4,100 0.00%

     Regional planning projects 60,000 - 60,000 0.00%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 177,763 171,335 6,428 96.38%

     Travel & training 18,000 9,634 8,366 53.52%

     Web design & maintenance 4,000 2,981 1,019 74.53%

          Total operating expenses 554,446 410,752 143,694 74.08%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Interest revenue 100 - (100) 0.00%

     Special projects expense (50,000) (13,366) 36,634 26.73%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (49,900) (13,366) 36,534 -26.79%

Income (loss) before transfers (412,188) (232,364) (179,824) 56.37%

Transfer in 230,000 230,000 - 100.00%

Additional transfer in if necessary 60,771 - 60,771 0.00%

Change in net position (121,417) (2,364) (119,053) 156.37%

Net position, beginning of year 121,417 121,417 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 4th quarter -$               119,053$       (119,053)$      



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services -$             -$             -$             
     Total operating revenues - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES
      Expenses - - -
          Total operating expenses - - -

Operating income (loss) - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Minimum monthly payments 4,296,050 4,483,159 187,109 104.36%
     Interest Revenue 2,161,063 2,750,657 589,594 127.28%
     Interest Expense (1,565,230) (1,608,065) (42,835) 102.74%

     Wire fees (1,750) (2,578) (828) 147.31%

     Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 478,365 738,518 260,153 154.38%

     Bond Issuance Costs (451,895) (451,895) - 100.00%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 4,916,603 5,909,796 993,193 120.20%

Change in net position before transfers 4,916,603 5,909,796 993,193 120.20%

Net position, beginning of year 5,264,060$    5,264,060 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 10,180,663$ 11,173,856$ 993,193$       109.76%

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services -$             -$             -$             
     Total operating revenues - - -

OPERATING EXPENSES
      Expenses - - -
          Total operating expenses - - -

Operating income (loss) - - -

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Minimum monthly payments 4,296,050 4,483,159 187,109 104.36%
     Interest Revenue 2,161,063 2,750,657 589,594 127.28%
     Interest Expense (1,565,230) (1,608,065) (42,835) 102.74%

     Wire fees (1,750) (2,578) (828) 147.31%

     Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investments 478,365 738,518 260,153 154.38%

     Bond Issuance Costs (451,895) (451,895) - 100.00%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 4,916,603 5,909,796 993,193 120.20%

Change in net position before transfers 4,916,603 5,909,796 993,193 120.20%

Net position, beginning of year 5,264,060$    5,264,060 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 10,180,663$ 11,173,856$ 993,193$       109.76%



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMPARISON SCHEDULE
WET UTILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE  MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services 3,894,959$           3,833,331$      (61,628)$      98.42%
     Other revenue 5,500 11,487 5,987 208.85%
     Total operating revenues 3,900,459 3,844,818 (55,641) 98.57%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Analytical 149,875 104,911 44,964 70.00%
     Consulting 46,800 8,358 38,442 17.86%
     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 49,770 44,571 5,199 89.55%
     Equipment rental 4,965 - 4,965 0.00%
     Insurance 61,197 60,279 918 98.50%
     Materials 237,700 194,317 43,383 81.75%
     Permits 50,500 32,118 18,382 63.60%
     Repairs 295,600 253,287 42,313 85.69%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,118,158 916,871 201,287 82.00%
     Supplies & materials 64,660 57,124 7,536 88.35%
     Utilities 198,000 183,555 14,445 92.70%
     Waste disposal 56,000 43,749 12,251 78.12%

     Water purchase cost 251,057 245,030 6,027 97.60%

     Infrastructure services 102,679 128,197 (25,518) 124.85%
     Overhead allocation - water 196,527 172,671 23,856 87.86%
     Overhead allocation - wastewater 213,473 187,674 25,799 87.91%
     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 215,286 189,214 26,072 87.89%
          Total operating expenses 3,312,247 2,821,926 490,321 85.20%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 588,212 1,022,892 434,680 173.90%

Depreciation 844,500 862,430 (17,930) 102.12%

Amortization - 23,557 (23,557)

Operating income (loss) (256,288) 136,905 393,193 53.42%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,485,761 1,459,034 (26,727) 98.20%

     Interest revenue 84,600 77,705 (6,895) 91.85%

     Project Admin Fees 18,321 18,974 653 103.56%

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets 26,000 23,105 (2,895) 88.87%

     Interest expense (267,791) (270,851) (3,060) 101.14%

     Franchise fees expense (109,035) (111,638) (2,603) 102.39%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,237,856 1,196,329 (41,527) 96.65%

Income (loss) before transfers 981,568 1,333,234 351,666 135.83%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (230,000) - 100.00%

Change in net position 751,568 1,103,234 351,666 146.79%

Net position, beginning of year 14,917,818 14,917,818 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 15,669,386$          16,021,052$     351,666$      102.24%

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMPARISON SCHEDULE
WET UTILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE  MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services 3,894,959$           3,833,331$      (61,628)$      98.42%
     Other revenue 5,500 11,487 5,987 208.85%
     Total operating revenues 3,900,459 3,844,818 (55,641) 98.57%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Analytical 149,875 104,911 44,964 70.00%
     Consulting 46,800 8,358 38,442 17.86%
     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 49,770 44,571 5,199 89.55%
     Equipment rental 4,965 - 4,965 0.00%
     Insurance 61,197 60,279 918 98.50%
     Materials 237,700 194,317 43,383 81.75%
     Permits 50,500 32,118 18,382 63.60%
     Repairs 295,600 253,287 42,313 85.69%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,118,158 916,871 201,287 82.00%
     Supplies & materials 64,660 57,124 7,536 88.35%
     Utilities 198,000 183,555 14,445 92.70%
     Waste disposal 56,000 43,749 12,251 78.12%

     Water purchase cost 251,057 245,030 6,027 97.60%

     Infrastructure services 102,679 128,197 (25,518) 124.85%
     Overhead allocation - water 196,527 172,671 23,856 87.86%
     Overhead allocation - wastewater 213,473 187,674 25,799 87.91%
     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 215,286 189,214 26,072 87.89%
          Total operating expenses 3,312,247 2,821,926 490,321 85.20%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 588,212 1,022,892 434,680 173.90%

Depreciation 844,500 862,430 (17,930) 102.12%

Amortization - 23,557 (23,557)

Operating income (loss) (256,288) 136,905 393,193 53.42%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,485,761 1,459,034 (26,727) 98.20%

     Interest revenue 84,600 77,705 (6,895) 91.85%

     Project Admin Fees 18,321 18,974 653 103.56%

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets 26,000 23,105 (2,895) 88.87%

     Interest expense (267,791) (270,851) (3,060) 101.14%

     Franchise fees expense (109,035) (111,638) (2,603) 102.39%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,237,856 1,196,329 (41,527) 96.65%

Income (loss) before transfers 981,568 1,333,234 351,666 135.83%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (230,000) - 100.00%

Change in net position 751,568 1,103,234 351,666 146.79%

Net position, beginning of year 14,917,818 14,917,818 - 100.00%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 15,669,386$          16,021,052$     351,666$      102.24%



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Member fees 191,754$                    202,945$                     (11,191)$               -5.51%
          Total operating revenues 191,754 202,945 (11,191) -5.51%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Accounting & audit 4,960 4,500 460 10.22%
     Community relations 2,605 1,553 1,052 67.74%
     Conferences & seminars 4,071 3,811 260 6.82%
     Consulting 182,111 184,769 (2,658) -1.44%
     Dues & memberships 9,041 8,372 669 7.99%
     Engineering services 11,100 47,045 (35,945) -76.41%
     Legal & professional fees 7,529 14,300 (6,771) -47.35%
     Meetings expense 5,385 4,744 641 13.51%
     Military affairs - 2,750 (2,750) -100.00%
     Office supplies and expense - 766 (766) -100.00%
     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 171,335 173,623 (2,288) -1.32%
     Travel & training 9,634 9,159 475 5.19%

     Web design & maintenance 2,981 5,570 (2,589) -46.48%

          Total operating expenses 410,752 460,962 (50,210) -10.89%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (218,998) (258,017) 39,019 15.12%

     Depreciation - - -

Operating income (loss) (218,998) (258,017) 39,019 -15.12%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Interest revenue - 133 (133) -100.00%

     Special projects expense (13,366) (50,005) 36,639 -73.27%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (13,366) (49,872) 36,506 73.20%

Income (loss) before transfers (232,364) (307,889) 75,525 24.53%

Transfers in (out) 230,000 230,000 -

Change in net position (2,364) (77,889) 75,525 96.96%

Net position, beginning of year 121,417 199,306 (77,889) -39.08%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 119,053$                     121,417$                      (2,364)$                  -1.95%

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
WATER SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Member fees 191,754$                    202,945$                     (11,191)$               -5.51%
          Total operating revenues 191,754 202,945 (11,191) -5.51%

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Accounting & audit 4,960 4,500 460 10.22%
     Community relations 2,605 1,553 1,052 67.74%
     Conferences & seminars 4,071 3,811 260 6.82%
     Consulting 182,111 184,769 (2,658) -1.44%
     Dues & memberships 9,041 8,372 669 7.99%
     Engineering services 11,100 47,045 (35,945) -76.41%
     Legal & professional fees 7,529 14,300 (6,771) -47.35%
     Meetings expense 5,385 4,744 641 13.51%
     Military affairs - 2,750 (2,750) -100.00%
     Office supplies and expense - 766 (766) -100.00%
     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 171,335 173,623 (2,288) -1.32%
     Travel & training 9,634 9,159 475 5.19%

     Web design & maintenance 2,981 5,570 (2,589) -46.48%

          Total operating expenses 410,752 460,962 (50,210) -10.89%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (218,998) (258,017) 39,019 15.12%

     Depreciation - - -

Operating income (loss) (218,998) (258,017) 39,019 -15.12%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     Interest revenue - 133 (133) -100.00%

     Special projects expense (13,366) (50,005) 36,639 -73.27%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (13,366) (49,872) 36,506 73.20%

Income (loss) before transfers (232,364) (307,889) 75,525 24.53%

Transfers in (out) 230,000 230,000 -

Change in net position (2,364) (77,889) 75,525 96.96%

Net position, beginning of year 121,417 199,306 (77,889) -39.08%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 119,053$                     121,417$                      (2,364)$                  -1.95%



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services: - - -
          Total operating revenues - - -

-
OPERATING EXPENSES
    Regional Water System capital outlay - - -
          Total operating expenses - - --

Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds - - -

    Bond Proceeds - - -
Operating income (loss) - - - -
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -
     Minimum monthly payments 4,483,159 4,488,277 (5,118) -0.11%
     Interest Revenue 2,750,657 652,742 2,097,915 321.40%
     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment 738,518 (1,298,496) 2,037,014 -156.87%
     Interest Expense (1,608,065) (1,027,817) (580,248) 56.45%
     Wire fees (2,578) - (2,578)
     Bond Issuance Costs (451,895) (2,355,901) 1,904,006 -80.82%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 5,909,796 458,805 5,450,991 1188.08%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 5,909,796 458,805 5,450,991 1188.08%

Transfers in (out) - 583,961 (583,961) -100.00%

Net position, beginning of year 5,264,060 4,221,294 1,042,766 24.70%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 11,173,856$                5,264,060$                  5,909,796$            112.27%

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services: - - -
          Total operating revenues - - -

-
OPERATING EXPENSES
    Regional Water System capital outlay - - -
          Total operating expenses - - --

Operating income (loss) before bond proceeds - - -

    Bond Proceeds - - -
Operating income (loss) - - - -
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -
     Minimum monthly payments 4,483,159 4,488,277 (5,118) -0.11%
     Interest Revenue 2,750,657 652,742 2,097,915 321.40%
     Unrealized gain (loss) on investment 738,518 (1,298,496) 2,037,014 -156.87%
     Interest Expense (1,608,065) (1,027,817) (580,248) 56.45%
     Wire fees (2,578) - (2,578)
     Bond Issuance Costs (451,895) (2,355,901) 1,904,006 -80.82%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 5,909,796 458,805 5,450,991 1188.08%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 5,909,796 458,805 5,450,991 1188.08%

Transfers in (out) - 583,961 (583,961) -100.00%

Net position, beginning of year 5,264,060 4,221,294 1,042,766 24.70%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 11,173,856$                5,264,060$                  5,909,796$            112.27%



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
WET UTILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Army volumetric charge 3,281,493$                3,246,554$                  34,939$                1.08%
          Army water supply charge 239,839 245,363 (5,524) -2.25%
          Commercial & residential charge 195,483 151,966 43,517 28.64%
           Infrastructure services 116,516 - 116,516
     Other revenue 11,487 2,275 9,212 404.92%
          Total operating revenues 3,844,818 3,646,158 198,660 5.45%

-
OPERATING EXPENSES -
     Analyticals 104,911 100,504 4,407 4.38%
     Consulting 8,358 31,002 (22,644) -73.04%
     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 44,571 50,233 (5,662) -11.27%
     Equipment rental - 2,281 (2,281) -100.00%
     Insurance 60,279 49,277 11,002 22.33%
     Materials 194,317 189,183 5,134 2.71%
     Permits 32,118 32,399 (281) -0.87%
     Repairs 253,287 207,063 46,224 22.32%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 916,871 925,715 (8,844) -0.96%

     Supplies & materials 57,124 26,712 30,412 113.85%

     Utilities 183,555 160,577 22,978 14.31%

     Waste disposal 43,749 44,748 (999) -2.23%

     Water purchase cost 245,030 385,321 (140,291) -36.41%

      Infrastructure services 128,197 - 128,197

     Overhead allocation - water 172,671 187,709 (15,038) -8.01%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 187,674 203,894 (16,220) -7.96%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 189,214 205,627 (16,413) -7.98%

          Total operating expenses 2,821,926 2,802,245 19,681 0.70%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 1,022,892 843,913 178,979 21.21%

     Depreciation 862,430 833,250 29,180 3.50%

     Amortization 23,557 - 23,557

Operating income (loss) 136,905 10,663 126,242 1183.93%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 1,459,034 1,443,486 15,548 1.08%

     Interest revenue 77,705 20,338 57,367 282.07%

     Project admin fees 18,974 30,083 (11,109) -36.93%

     Interest expense (270,851) (317,672) 46,821 -14.74%

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets 23,105 11,326 11,779 104.00%

     Bond issuance costs - (65,000) 65,000 -100.00%

     Franchise fees expense (111,638) (109,350) (2,288) 2.09%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,196,329 1,013,211 183,118 18.07%

Income (loss) before transfers 1,333,234 1,023,874 309,360 30.21%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (813,961) 583,961 -71.74%

Change in net position 1,103,234 209,913 893,321 425.57%

Net position, beginning of year 14,917,818 14,707,905 209,913 1.43%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 16,021,052$               14,917,818$                 1,103,234$            7.40%

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
WET UTILITIES FUND
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:
          Army volumetric charge 3,281,493$                3,246,554$                  34,939$                1.08%
          Army water supply charge 239,839 245,363 (5,524) -2.25%
          Commercial & residential charge 195,483 151,966 43,517 28.64%
           Infrastructure services 116,516 - 116,516
     Other revenue 11,487 2,275 9,212 404.92%
          Total operating revenues 3,844,818 3,646,158 198,660 5.45%

-
OPERATING EXPENSES -
     Analyticals 104,911 100,504 4,407 4.38%
     Consulting 8,358 31,002 (22,644) -73.04%
     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 44,571 50,233 (5,662) -11.27%
     Equipment rental - 2,281 (2,281) -100.00%
     Insurance 60,279 49,277 11,002 22.33%
     Materials 194,317 189,183 5,134 2.71%
     Permits 32,118 32,399 (281) -0.87%
     Repairs 253,287 207,063 46,224 22.32%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 916,871 925,715 (8,844) -0.96%

     Supplies & materials 57,124 26,712 30,412 113.85%

     Utilities 183,555 160,577 22,978 14.31%

     Waste disposal 43,749 44,748 (999) -2.23%

     Water purchase cost 245,030 385,321 (140,291) -36.41%

      Infrastructure services 128,197 - 128,197

     Overhead allocation - water 172,671 187,709 (15,038) -8.01%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 187,674 203,894 (16,220) -7.96%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 189,214 205,627 (16,413) -7.98%

          Total operating expenses 2,821,926 2,802,245 19,681 0.70%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 1,022,892 843,913 178,979 21.21%

     Depreciation 862,430 833,250 29,180 3.50%

Operating income (loss) 160,462 10,663 149,799 1404.85%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 1,459,034 1,443,486 15,548 1.08%

     Interest revenue 77,705 20,338 57,367 282.07%

     Project admin fees 18,974 30,083 (11,109) -36.93%

     Interest expense (270,851) (317,672) 46,821 -14.74%

     Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets 23,105 11,326 11,779 104.00%

     Bond issuance costs - (65,000) 65,000 -100.00%

     Franchise fees expense (111,638) (109,350) (2,288) 2.09%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,196,329 1,013,211 183,118 18.07%

Income (loss) before transfers 1,356,791 1,023,874 332,917 32.52%

Transfers in (out) (230,000) (813,961) 583,961 -71.74%

Change in net position 1,126,791 209,913 916,878 436.79%

Net position, beginning of year 14,917,818 14,707,905 209,913 1.43%

Net position, end of 4th quarter 16,044,609$               14,917,818$                 1,126,791$            7.55%



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. F. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-07 

FY 2023 Fourth Quarter  
Investment Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-07 
 

APPROVING THE FOURTH QUARTER FY 2023 INVESTMENT REPORT   
 

 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 
required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 
Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-bearing 
accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 
accepts and approves the Fourth Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report. 
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Steve Mayo, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Attached: Fourth Quarter FY 2023 Investment Report 



F

.ron.a.\60\o

o.\o-o.n
tr\O

o\*\o

€\oN
o,.a.a..r6

v\o 
o 

o 
r 

6 
N

 
\o

-+
6didriod
<

totr.'r-N

-. .1

o-dh.rl
oorrh€o
r6i.ao.a-

-6rlo:l 
6F

o

rrooro,6\o@
.\

\o.a66-N
O

\\O
r6

- 
6 

v)o.\o-6 
t-6-----F

-vlcl

5o

.!.6.6.G
.d.t99

IJIJ(JIJIJU
 

if 
O

,^N
N

N
N

;ti 
E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 -

oooLt

5::::::-r*E
***E

E
>

- >
 >

,-E
 -E

 _E
 _: _E

 _E
 E

>
,999999thA

thaA
6',t'

d>
>

>
>

>
:ddddddjj

t*ti 
E

oooo>

.3>
 a

o>
o

€F
=

=
=

=
=

=
=

=

=
aN

Q
Q

Q
Q

G
;.ad.6F

ed
xxE

;ts;;+
9S

$gE
S

S

1
!b;9
E

82.9
. 

;;H
E

;,-33 
8 3

iA
d,ddg,

B

A

6 99 
a

E
O

dO

E

U
E

!i.9
F

(-)

zL-

! 
oi:

a: 
c

P
 E

R
g 9=

'ioaz

t-OFU
)

U
)

r!Q=U
I

t.,i
FzI.,l

I!

q 
lE

z 
-!.=

 
r 

3 r 
a t 

i,,
I 

4E
e 

e I I I9 
- -

!q 
E

E
9H

99C
99C

E
 ,!r 

i 
ti 

uJ L! Lrl Lrl Lr.i q.l l! 
,.1

::>
65 

d.zE
E

665E
b:;

gE
E

q".cd€E
;E

zZ
ziA

=
 E

 e e =
 i---ree E

 ? e e e e
6<

E
A

bb9P
;6U

,---qi-qd
ir=

=
ooO

oO
oO

o
F

.Q
U

E
,d::U

L/U
I,U

U
U

U
E

 E
 <

.0 <
 .o <

 co <
 ao <

 .o <
.0 <

.0
6'=

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

>
,.=

.r 
N

 
N

E
'E

'o 
! 

!

?,E
'E

'E
'E

'E
 

E
'E

'E
 

E
 

tr'E
'E

'E
'i'E

'-@
d, d 

d 
d 

d 
d. d, I 

d, d. d. d. ci 
cz,z

E

>
i_

t?. -
z4 

z

!J4 
v

)4 
i

az 
E



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  
RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM VII. G. 
RWRD RESO 20240124-08 

FY 2023 Audit Approval 
 

 



 
RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20240124-08 

 
APPROVING THE FY 2023 ANNUAL AUDIT PERFORMED BY  

WILF & HENDERSON, P.C. 
 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation district 
created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors deems it necessary to 

engage a qualified Certified Public Accounting firm to conduct an annual audit, wich provides for 
increased fiduciary responsibility of Riverbend Water Resources District funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, Wilf & Henderson, P.C. provides the necessary accounting and financial 

services to fully perform an annual audit; and 
 
WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District staff and Wilf & Henderson, P.C. staff 

collaborated to conduct the audit and represent the financial statements, management discussion 
and analysis, and management representations in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources District 

approves the FY 2023 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C. for distribution. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of January 2024 

 
 
     ___________________________________ 
     Steve Mayo, President 
 

ATTEST:  
 
 

______________________________ 
Tina Veal Gooch, Secretary 
 
 
 
Attached: FY 2023 Annual Audit for Riverbend Water Resources District 











i 
 

 

 

January 24, 2024 

 

 

 

The Board of Directors, 

Members of Riverbend 

Water Resources District 

 

In accordance with state statutes, the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of Riverbend Water 

Resources District for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 is hereby submitted.  Responsibility for both 

the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests 

with management.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material 

respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations 

of the enterprise funds of Riverbend.  All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum 

understanding of Riverbend’s financial activities have been included.  

 

PROFILE OF RIVERBEND 

 

Riverbend Water Resources District was created in 2009 by Senate Bill 1223 of the Texas Legislature.  It is a 

conservation and reclamation district with statutory powers including the authority to acquire any and all 

storage rights and storage capacity in a reservoir and to acquire the right to take water from that reservoir.  

The roots of Riverbend can be found in the area’s past regional water partnerships focused on utilizing Wright 

Patman Lake as their primary water supply source.  In 1953, and again in 1968, the City of Texarkana, Texas, in 

cooperation and with the support of its neighboring cities, executed agreements with the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers to use a portion of the flood control pool at Wright Patman to meet their long-term water supply 

needs.  Over time, Texarkana, Texas on behalf of itself and other area users, secured permits which allowed 

them to impound, divert, and appropriate water in Wright Patman lake for both municipal and industrial use.   

 

In 1966, the Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation (“LTWSC”) was created for the purpose of financing the 

acquisition, construction and maintenance of a new water treatment and distribution system to its members.  

In 1969 in order to support LTWSC’s debt issue and facilitate administration of the new water treatment and 

distribution system, the City of Texarkana, Texas signed water supply contracts with surrounding Texas-side 

communities, known as the original Member Cities (including Annona, Avery, DeKalb, Hooks, Maud, New 

Boston, Texarkana, Texas, and Wake Village), collectively known as “Member City Contracts.”  Today, 

Riverbend has now grown to include eighteen (18) members that include communities within Bowie, Cass and 

Red River Counties in northeast Texas.  Riverbend membership grew during 2011, after being reconstituted, 

and again in 2019, Texas Special District Local Law Code Section 9601.005(b) allowed water supply corporations 

to join Riverbend.  Current members include Annona, Atlanta, Avery, Central Bowie County WSC, DeKalb, 

Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation, Redwater, Texarkana, Wake 

Village, TexAmericas Center, as well as Bowie, Cass and Red River Counties.   











Riverbend Water Resources District Organizational Chart

RWRD Board of 
Directors

Executive 
Director/CEO

Executive 
Assistant/HR 

Manager

Director of 
Operations

Operations 
Manager

Maintenance

Water 
Distribution

Maintenance 
Technicians

Industrial Waste 
Water 

Operators

Waste Water

Operators

Chief Financial 
Officer

Accounting 
Operations 
Specialist

Auditors Legal Counsel

vi
























































































































































































